
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resoures Connie Boehnke if needed


Approval for the Chairman to execute any and all required documents associated with the annual renewal and implementation of options 


for Employee Health Care Benefits, including but not limited to agreements and contracts, for the benefits year which begins June 1, 


2011.


At the March 10, 2011 County Commission meeting the Board approved changes to the County's Employee Health Care Benefits 


Package and authorized the renewal of existing programs and the implementation of some additional health care options.  The motion by 


the Board that authorized the renewals and new programs did not include authorization for the Chairman to sign the necessary 


documentation associated with these renewals.   


 


Staff is simply requesting authorization for the Chairman to execute any documents, including but not limited to contracts and 


agreements, related to the renewal or implementation of options for employee benefits for the benefit year beginning June 1, 2011. The 


Chairman would only sign documents after the County Attorney has given his approval.


Motion for approval for the Chairman to execute any and all required documents associated with the annual renewal and implementation 


of options for Employee Health Care Benefits, including but not limited to agreements and contracts, for the benefits year which begins 


June 1, 2011.


Funding is within annual operating budget.


Yes March 10, 2011


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Consideration of proposed Amendment to the County's Flexible Benefits Plan as required by the Patient Protection and Affordable Care 


Act of 2010.


The (national) Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) was signed into law in March of 2010.  One of the major components 


of PPACA that will directly affect the County's overall health care plan is the provision that dependents (children) be permitted to remain 


on their parents' insurance plan until their 26th birthday.  The regulations that were implemented under the Act state that this will include 


dependents who no longer live with their parents, who are not a dependent on a parent’s tax return, who are no longer a student, or who 


are married.  Approval of the amendment as proposed is necessary in order for the County's Flexible Benefits Plan to be in compliance 


with federal law. 


 


Two additional items were added to this Amendment that cover reimbursement for non-prescription medicines or drugs and the address 


for submitting internal appeals.  The Internal Revenue Service regulates what items flexible benefits plans will cover since premiums for 


these plans are pre-tax contributions.  The IRS now requires that over-the-counter medicines like acetaminophen and ibuprofen require a 


prescription in order to be eligible for reimbursement.  Over the counter items that are not drugs or medicines, such as bandages, will still 


be eligible for reimbursement without a prescription. 


Motion to approve the Amendment to the County Employee Flexible Benefits Plan and authorization for the Chairman to sign any and all 


necessary documentation pending the County Attorney's review.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 28, 2011

















		Human Resources - Flexible Benefits Plan Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources - Flexible Benefits Plan Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Steve Vaughn, GEBCorp


Steve Vaughn with GEBCorp will  present the annual valuation report on the County's defined benefit retirement plan. 


The Board of Commissioners voted to implement a defined benefit retirement plan in 2009.  This will be the second report on the fiscal 


status of the plan since its inception on July 1, 2009 and will provide account valuation data as of January 1, 2011.  The presentation will 


include an overview of investment performance.   


 


A summary report from GEBCorp is attached.


The presentation is for informational purposes. No action is required by the Board of Commissioners.


No Thursday, September 23, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 28, 2011

































































































































































		Human Resources- GEBCorp Annu...ation Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- GEBCorp Annual Valuation Report Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Consideration of preferred provider agreements under the County's employee health care plan that will address sleep disorder 


diagnostics and associated durable medical equipment as well as digestive healthcare procedures.


Medical claim costs associated with sleep disorders have resulted in excessive payouts by the County's self-insured employee health 


insurance plan thus far during the current plan year.  In addition, some employees have paid higher out of pocket expenses due to the 


manner in which some providers have billed these services and the related durable medical goods.  Pacific General has worked with 


Meritain, the County's third party health insurance administrator, to negotiate preferred provider agreements with Total Sleep Diagnostics, 


Inc. and Trusted Life Care, Inc.  These agreements will help to control costs for both the County and employees as well as help to avoid 


out of network charges associated with sleep studies and prescribed durable medical goods.  In addition, a preferred provider agreement 


has been negotiated with Summit Endoscopy Center, a digestive healthcare provider to assist with controlling costs for such procedures 


as endoscopies and colonoscopies.  Outpatient procedures will now require pre-certification through Meritain as an added measure to 


help ensure that employees receive services from in network providers and facilities to further minimize the risk of out of network charges. 


 


The negotiated fee discounts are outlined in the attached backup material. 


 


 


Motion for the County to enter into agreements with Total Sleep Diagnostics and Summit Endoscopy Center and authorization for the 


Chairman to execute any and all necessary documents needed to implement amendments to the County's healthcare plan, pending the 


County Attorney's review.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 28, 2011

















		Human Resources- Preferred Pr...ement Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Preferred Provider Agreement Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Information Systems LBL Technology Partners


Approval of staff's recommendation that the Strategic Technology and Risk Assessment Plan developed by LBL Technology Partners be 
accepted by the County as the basis for the County's five-year plan identifying future technology initiatives and the reduction of risks 
associated with the County's technology systems. 


The consulting firm of LBL Technology Partners was awarded the contract in the amount of $57,480.00 to develop a Strategic 
Technology Plan and to perform a Risk Assessment for the County's technology needs. The consultants worked closely with the 
Information Systems Department to gather the necessary information concerning the County's technology environment, infrastructure, 
and initiatives. Interviews were conducted with representatives of the Technology Steering Committee in October, 2010 to gather 
information from the County departments.  
 
The consultants compiled the data to develop the Strategic Technology Plan and Risk Assessment. The finished documents provide the 
County with a 5-year plan for future technology initiatives and recommendations to reduce risks associated with Information Technology 
Systems. This information was presented to the Board of Commissioners for review at the Commissioners Retreat on February 12th. LBL 
Technology Partners will be giving a detailed presentation on the development of the documents and their findings.  
 
Funding  for future improvements to the County's technology needs will be considered annually during the budget process.


Acceptance of the Strategic Technology and Risk Assessment Plan as prepared by LBL Technology Partners.


Funding for the items in the Strategic Technology Plan would be decided on an annual basis as part of the County's budget process.


Yes 2011 Commissioners Retreat


Yes


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, April 28, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina/Tom Williams


Approval of a Resolution to adopt the "Fayette County 2010 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2010), including 


Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2011-FY2015.)" 


As required by the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards, Fayette County in collaboration with 


Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, has prepared  the "Fayette County 2010 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2010), including 


Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2011-FY2015.)"  


Public hearings were held by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on January 13, 2011, and by the three (3) towns in the 


following weeks.  Each entity approved the report for transmittal to ARC for coordination of state and regional review. 


 


We have received notifications of compliance from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and the Atlanta Regional Commission 


for the 2010 Fire Services Impact Fee Report including amendments to the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term Work 


Program of the Comprehensive Plan.  The next step is for each local government to adopt this report and for the adopting Resolutions to 


be transmitted to ARC.  The deadline for this adoption and transmittal of the adopting resolutions to ARC is June 30, 2011.  These 


actions are required for each government to retains its Qualified Local Government status.


Motion to approve of Resolution No. 2011-07 which adopts the ""Fayette County 2010 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees 


(FY2010), including Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program 


(FY2011-FY2015.)" 


Not applicable


Yes Thursday, January 13, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011

















































































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Fire Ser... 2010 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Fire Services Impact Fees 2010 Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton


Consideration of Petition No. 1221-11, Storage Xxtra Hwy. 85, LLC, Owner, and Fred Rickman, Jr., Agent, request to rezone 18.139 


acres from M-1 to PUD-PSBC to allow a mixture of uses within the O-I, C-C, C-H, and M-1 zoning districts.  This property is located in 


Land Lot 200 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 85 North.


This is the first rezoning request for the new PUD-PSBC zoning district.  The PUD-PSBC allows a mixture of uses from the O-I, C-C, C-H, 


and M-1 zoning districts.  The Pre-Recommendation Meeting with the Planning Commission was held on February 17, 2011.  On April 7, 


2011, the PC recommended approval of the rezoning petition, the Development Plan, and the Letter of Intent. 


 


The Planning Commission recommended approval of Petition No. 1221-11 unanimously.


Hold public hearing and vote a decision to approve/deny said rezoning petition. 


Not applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, April 28, 2011

































































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1221-11 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Petition 1221-11 Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of the Packaged Beer and Wine Sales License for RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc. d/b/a RaceTrac #192, 897 Highway 85 South, 


Fayetteville, Georgia, RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc., Owner, and Gabriel G. Wallace, Corporate Agent/Applicant.  This property is located in 


Land Lot 70 of the 5th District, fronts Ramah Road and SR 85 South, and is zoned C-H.  This is for a New Location.


This application is for the sale of beer and wine at a new location.  The fingerprints/background checks have been sent to the GCIC and 


the FBI and the results have been reviewed and approved by the Marshal's Office.  The application was reviewed and approved by the 


County Attorney.   


 


This application and site are in compliance with all state and county requirements for the issuance of a county license.


Motion to approve or deny the application of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Race Trac Petroleum, Inc. at 897 Highway 85 South.


Not Applicable


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, April 28, 2011













































































































		Planning and Zoning- Racetrac...cense Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Racetrac Beer and Wine License Backup.pdf










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the State Confiscated Revenue Technical Services Revenue Account by $40.00 to 
recognize abandoned monies which have been ordered retained for law enforcement enhancement.


In the course of various investigations, the Fayette County Sheriff's Office holds various types of property or evidence for court 
proceedings.  After disposition of any criminal or civil procedures the property is either destroyed or retained for law enforcement use.


Motion to amend the Fayette County Sheriff's Office State Confiscated Technical Services Revenue Account by $40.00 which has been 
retained for law enforcement use.  This would revise the State Confiscated Revenue Account-Technical Services Account No. 
21030390-521316 to $10,072.78.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


April 6, 2011
3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday, April 6, 2011, at 3:30
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
________________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


OLD BUSINESS:
1. Consideration of authorization for the County staff to restore transportation priorities due to severe


budget constraints, restricting spending on lower priority projects, ensuring completion of the number
one priority T-SPLOST project (East Fayetteville Bypass):


Commissioner Brown discussed Fayette County transportation Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax  projects as well
as budgeted funding for these projects.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.1", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.  He reviewed a spreadsheet indicating the highlighted red portions being lower priority
and suggested these be halted and the yellow highlighted portions, also indicating low priority, be frozen along with any
projects dropped by the County.  A copy of the spreadsheet, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof. He read the following into the record and a copy, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 2


Commissioner Brown stated, “The Fayette County Board of Commissioners set the 2004 SPLOST referendum priorities
for the citizens to vote on.  In fact, an official County memorandum dated January 15, 2004 by Fayette County Public
Works Director Lee Hearn entitled ‘Priority list of transportation project[s] with cost estimates’ unmistakably says ‘Priority
#1 East Fayetteville Bypass’ and calls for engineering design to occur in 2006, right-of-way acquisition in 2008 and
construction in 2010.  That schedule was created based on the research of the County’s contracted engineering firm
URS Corporation and significant input from all the governmental jurisdictions within Fayette County, officially accepted
by the Board of Commissioners including Commissioner Herb Frady.  The County spent $140,000 to determine those
transportation priorities.  The citizen voters of Fayette County went to the voting booths in 2004 with a legitimate set of
transportation priorities agreed upon in official meetings and announced in the local news media.”


Commissioner Brown further stated that “The Dunn administration began the process of designing and building the East
Fayetteville Bypass, as intended, directing the allocation of funds to see the project through.  However, the previous
Board of Commissioners with no public input, no public announcement and no public vote changed the priorities of our
citizens, deciding instead to build the developer welfare project known as the West Fayetteville Bypass or the Road to
Nowhere.  It is especially painful since Commissioner Hearn and Commissioner Frady, who both participated in the
creation of the SPLOST priorities, willfully denied the very voters who approved the SPLOST referendum of any input
at all on changing their priorities.  Then-Chairman Smith made the following comment on video tape at the Fayette
County Local Issues Tea Party Candidates Forum: ‘Now it is true that we could alter which roads got built, and, in fact,
we changed the emphasis from the East to the West Bypass.’  They withdrew all funding commitments from the top
priority East Fayetteville Bypass and all direct action halted without a single vote.”


Commissioner Brown further remarked that “In the same candidates forum, then – Commissioner Maxwell stated, ‘That’s
just the position that Jack and I and the rest of the Board of Commissioners find ourselves in; is we’re implementing a
SPLOST that was passed by a different Board of Commissioners.’  Truly, Truly, many of us in the County only wish the
previous and current Board of Commissioners were implementing the citizen’s SPLOST in the priority order they were
promised.  Critical SPLOST funds have been wasted on many low priority projects, not just the West Fayetteville Bypass.
The previous Board of Commissioners decided to sacrifice the top priority for a project list of marginal importance which
could be performed in the future.  The reason the County enlisted the use of the SPLOST methodology was it gave us
the only means to accumulate a significant amount of funding to actually build a large-scale project like the East
Fayetteville Bypass, but most of the funding has been squandered on lesser projects.”


Commissioner Brown stated that the facts were that “The East Fayetteville Bypass (S. Jeff Davis to 85), costing over
$39 million, is the total responsibility of the County Government and has had funding appropriated for engineering.  This
project is eligible for matching federal funds for right-of-way acquisition and construction which would be lost if the project
does not move forward.  The cost of this large project will never be lower than our current figures because of the
depressed real estate market.  Nearly three times the amount of funding needed to build this project has been collected
by the additional one-percent tax, so ample funds have been available to build the citizens’ top priority project.  In an
attempt to bring some fiscal legitimacy back to Fayette County and a sense of order, he said he would like to make a
motion.”


Commissioner Brown made a motion to halt any SPLOST funding directed to the lower priority red highlighted projects
as indicated on the color spreadsheet and also that any spending on the lower priority yellow highlighted projects be
frozen, along with any projects dropped by the County or municipalities, until the East Fayetteville Bypass, the number
one priority project of the County, is completed.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion, discussion followed.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 3


Commissioner Horgan remarked that since he had been on the Board of Commissioners he had been through several
Board members including three different Chairmen, two Public Works Directors, two County Administrators and he had
never seen the projects from the 2004 SPLOST been identified as East Fayetteville Bypass as the number one project.
He said this had never been the case at any meeting held.  He noted that in 2007 the Board of Commissioners did make
a decision to not continue on with the East Fayetteville Bypass at that time.  He said it was felt that the decision was to
get more projects done in the County by using the SPLOST money was more productive than all of the funds going
toward the East Fayetteville Bypass.  He said the reason this occurred was because DOT funding was lost in 2007.  He
he did not feel that any of the other projects were any less important than the bypass road.  He said an intersection
improvement could save lives just as much as carrying people down a road.  He during that time with the money that
was allocated, more things were available to be done and more intersections and more improvements were able to be
done with the money that was allocated.  He said he did not agree with Commissioner Brown on this issue.  He said he
would like to remark on Commissioner Brown’s comment that the East Fayetteville Bypass was the number one project
listed by the Association of Fayette County Governments.  He pointed out that the number two project was the Highway
54 widening.  He noted that Commissioner Brown was totally against that project and totally against project number
three.  He said this just did not make any sense.  He said if the County was going to continue to keep working by what
was said then, he said he just could not agree with it.  He said he felt the money was not being used to the best ability
that it could be for the citizens of Fayette County.


Chairman Frady said he agreed and wanted to make a comment.  He said he did not feel Commissioner Brown had done
a proper study on this because the East Fayetteville Bypass goes through a huge historical spot.  He said the State of
Georgia had already stated that it would not approve a bypass through that area.  He said if this project was not
approved by the State Historical Society, a bypass road would not go through there.  He said the current plans were just
preliminary drawings and nothing was firm.  


Commissioner McCarty remarked that he was new to the Commission and could only go by the references that he could
find.  He said he had a memorandum dated January 16, 2004 specifically lists the East Fayetteville Bypass as priority
number one.  A copy of the memorandum, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  He said priority number two was S.R. 54 East widening, priority number three was the West Fayetteville
Bypass, priority number four was Sandy Creek Road , priority number five was Jimmy Mayfield project and so on down
the list.  He said somebody had established this list for the items and it was not him nor was it Commissioner Brown.
He commented that there were a lot of constituents living on dirt roads in Fayette County and he asked why these roads
were not paved first and put the bypass at the bottom of the list. 


Chairman Frady interjected that there were approximately 57 miles of dirt roads in the County and the County has tried
to pave them all.  He said citizens just don’t want to give right-of-way and the law requires 80% approval from residents
living on the road.  Commissioner McCarty said he could take Chairman Frady to several roads where the citizens were
willing to give their right-of-way at no cost to the County.  Chairman Frady asked for these citizens’ names and
Commissioner McCarty said he would be glad to provide him with those names.


Commissioner Hearn remarked that the roads that Commissioner Brown had listed in red were the roads that
Commissioner Brown would like to be stopped immediately.  He said many of these were intersection improvements and
there is a bridge that is extremely important.  He said the yellow section indicated those projects may or may not move
forward.  He said there had been a lot of planning, thought, work and discussion by staff.  He noted that during the
Board’s budget planning retreat the Public Works Director actually submitted a list to the Board regarding the projects
listed in a priority list with estimated cost.  He said he would like to challenge Commissioner Brown on his comment that
“most of the funding has been squandered on lesser projects.”  He said he would like Commissioner Brown to provide
that list of projects where the County had wasted and squandered money.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 4


Commissioner Horgan interjected that the list had not been followed from the first day and he noted that the Jimmy
Mayfield project was listed as number five.  He said anything done at an Association of Fayette County Governments
meeting was not an official action by the Board of Commissioners regarding the list of road projects.  


Commissioner McCarty remarked that the problem was that the number one priority was the only one listed on the ballot
that the people could see without going and looking it up.  


Commissioner Horgan said he felt when that ballot was done, there was no collusion or anything else that anyone was
trying to hide.  He said at that time in 2002 and 2003 he did not feel that most people were thinking of open government
and really having things explained in as much detail as it was being done now.  He said he had never heard that the East
Fayetteville Bypass was the number one project until now.


Commissioner Brown said he would honestly say that this was not an A.F.C.G. list.  He said that list came from Fayette
County and this was a Fayette County memorandum from 2004.  He said there was absolutely no doubt that it came
from the official archives of Fayette County and has nothing to do with the Association of Fayette County Governments.
He said all of the County governments did say that the East Fayetteville Bypass was the only project that they agreed
on and what they wanted to be done and he was one of those people representing Peachtree City as Mayor.  He said
it was said that we have the means through a SPLOST to raise a substantial amount of money and we should think what
would be the most project that could be obtained for the most good.  He said everyone including Mayor Ken Steele,
Chairman Greg Dunn, Mayor Sheryl Lee, himself and all of the representatives agreed that the East Fayetteville Bypass
would have the greatest impact on the downtown traffic in Fayetteville.  He said the voters were told this.  He said
unfortunately a lot of the “door knobs and door stoppers” could have been paid for out of the general fund during any
year decided upon.  He said the reason the County is in the position that it is now is because the Board changed
priorities and it was done in such a way that the public was not involved, the public was not asked about anything, and
was not done in the public view.  He said there was no vote by the Board to say that the priorities were changed.  


Commissioner Brown further remarked on the Chairman’s comment regarding the historical site.  He said he recalled
the Board had approved the route for the East Fayetteville Bypass and the engineers were working on that bypass at
this very moment.  He said the historical element is no longer in play.  He said the Board had approved the route and
staff was working on that route and it was moving forward.  He said all that was left to be done was to fund the number
one priority of the citizens of Fayette County.  He said this Board should give the citizens what they voted for.  He said
this was in The Citizen Newspaper, The Atlanta Journal and Constitution and in the Fayette Daily News weekly what the
projects priorities were.  He said the East Fayetteville Bypass was always touted and when the people walked into the
voting booth and cast their vote, they were doing it based on the priority list in the Fayette County memorandum that
Commissioner McCarty has in his hand.  He said this Board should abide by what the citizens of Fayette County want
this Board to do.  He said there were some bridges listed on the project but those bridges could hold up.  He said he had
one green colored section on the list which was a bridge project. He noted that bridge was built in 1950 and was a critical
project that needed to get done.  


Chairman Frady remarked that the number three priority several years ago was the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He noted
that the West Fayetteville Bypass was ahead of the East Fayetteville Bypass which was listed at number eight.  He said
the Board had taken a vote on September 7, 2005 to start both of these projects (the East Fayetteville Bypass and the
West Fayetteville Bypass) and this was during Commissioner Dunn’s term.  He said priorities had changed throughout
the years and there were circumstances that cause change in priorities.  


Commissioner Brown said he felt it was a shame that money was being put into the West Fayetteville Bypass that would
have no immediate impact on traffic congestion.  He said he could reference a whole “boat load” of quotations from







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 5


public officials who said this was for future traffic, but he felt the most damning one was made by Mayor Ken Steele who
wrote a letter to the editor in the newspaper in his own words where he said “that road was clearly about new
development” and it was the new development from North Fayette all the way down to Starr’s Mill.  He said this was the
reason it got dubbed the “Developer Welfare Project” because it was about building homes and this was why there was
the empty school on the lot to accommodate those children after the houses are built.  He said he was talking about
8,000 cars on that road maybe ten years from now.  He said there was already a couple of thousand on it right now from
the traffic traveling to and from Sandy Creek High School and so forth.  He said this was not “bang for the buck.”  He said
there were more people traveling on Crosstown Road than would be traveling on the entire Bypass.  He said it just made
no sense.  


Chairman Frady said he could not be convinced that the West Fayetteville Bypass would not take more traffic than the
East Fayetteville Bypass.  He said it was taking traffic from SR 92 Highway, 85 Highway, and Redwine Road.  He said
8,400 cars per day was estimated by the time the road opens and in twenty years 13,000 cars per day was estimated.
He said it was not a road to nowhere because it goes to a road that ditches into Highway 138 in four different places and
to say that this is a road to nowhere is ridiculous.  


Commissioner Brown said he had a copy of the $140,000 URS Engineering Study that disproves what Chairman Frady
just said.  


Commissioner Hearn said the Board had discussed the road priorities during the February budget planning meeting and
he understood that priorities still include funding for the East Fayetteville Bypass.  County Administrator Jack Krakeel
confirmed that there was funding allocated for the East Fayetteville Bypass.  Commissioner Hearn also remarked that
engineering was underway to make this happen.  


Commissioner Brown asked for the amount of the funding and how much cash on hand through the SPLOST does the
County have to spend on the East Fayetteville Bypass.  Public Works Director Phil Mallon replied that the County
currently has $57 million currently available.  


Mr. Krakeel interjected that the question was how much money was currently allocated to the East Fayetteville Bypass
Phase I and then Phase II in the list that was presented to the Board during the retreat.  Mr. Mallon remarked that he
could not say for certain if these figures were identical to the Board retreat information.  He said there was $2 million
budgeted for professional engineering for Phase I and Phase II and then for the Bypass Southside of SR 54 there was
$3.6 million for right-of-way, $4.5 million for utilities and $20.2 million for construction.  Mr. Mallon remarked that on the
Northside there was $1.7 million for right-of-way, $1.2 million for utilities and $6.2 available for construction.  He said it
was being assumed that the County would get an 80% Federal match for construction on the Northside and currently
there was $7 million programmed for construction on the Southside and that was in the TIP.  


Mr. Mallon further remarked that he also wanted to add that the numbers associated with these projects do change. A
copy of an expenditure report, identified as “Attachment No.  5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.
He said some of the cost estimates that are being looked at today versus what was heard in the Fall, was that the original
cost estimate was based on the four-lane 120 foot wide road.  Commissioner Brown noted that the funds designated
for land acquisition would remain the same.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that last year the Atlanta Regional Commission had informed counties that
there had to be a realistic commitment from the counties as to which roads were going to be built.  He said if there was
not a commitment from the County, then the ARC would pull the money from the TIP.  He said in order for the County
to continue to be eligible to receive the $7 million, there had to be a definitive agreement to move forward with the project







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 6


in order to retain the TIP funding.  He said there was funding allocated in the current SPLOST to get some of this work
done in order to get access to the $7 million.


Commissioner Brown said he appreciated the fact that there was money set aside for the East Fayetteville Bypass.  He
said he just wanted to finish the road.  He said this was the number one priority project that the people voted on and that
was where the money should be.  He said when that funding cycle was complete and the East Fayetteville Bypass was
constructed, then the list of projects can be looked at.  
                                   
Chairman Frady called for the vote on Commissioner Brown’s motion.


The motion failed 2-3 with Chairman Frady, Commissioner Hearn and Commissioner Horgan voting in opposition.  


2. Discussion of the costs and impacts of various paving and widening alternatives for Snead Road West
of Old Greenville Road:


Road Department Director Andy Adams discussed the costs and impacts of various paving and widening alternatives
for Snead Road West of Old Greenville Road.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 6", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  He remarked that there was only one remaining section of Snead Road that
was a dirt road.  He said this was approximately 2,200 foot long section West of Old Greenville Road.  He said a few
years ago the Board approved a budget to do the paving of this road.  He said there was a discussion at that time as
to how wide the road would be paved.  He said initially it was indicated that the road be paved the same width that it was
currently and a budget was set up for that.  He discussed several alternatives and the impacts of each alternative for
paving this section of roadway.  He said if the existing road was paved the project would cost approximately $60,600.


Commissioner Hearn asked how wide was the existing roadway, and  Mr. Adams replied it was between 15 feet and 16
feet.  Mr. Adams remarked that a 60 foot right-of-way had been pursued and the acquisition of that right-of-way was near
completion.  He said there had also been discussion if the road met County specifications and it was paved to a standard
24 foot wide road with 6 feet grass shoulders, and a ditch section with certain slopes and certain widths the cost would
be approximately $88,300.  He said if this alternative was chosen it would take longer to complete this project than would
be otherwise.  He said there was only a  60 foot right-of-way and that would be a potential problem in building a 24 foot
wide road.  


Commissioner Hearn said he would like the specifications to be close to the County requirements.  He expressed
concern with the ditches and the current gravel road.  He said he would like to save as much money as possible but also
wanted the road to last many years.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel recommended if the road design was modified from the original design that staff be
directed to go back to the residents to give them full understanding of the project and the paving.  He said these
residents need to know that additional right-of-way would be needed for the paving.  


Commissioner Horgan interjected that there were only two homes on this road and it was a dead end cul-de-sac.  


Commissioner Brown expressed concern with funding the paving of a dirt road with only two homes on it and a flock of
deer and not funding the number one priority transportation project of the County.  He said absolutely without a doubt
that the County specifications for this road would have to be followed.  He said if these residents did not want to give
the County the right-of-way, then they would have a nice gravel road to continue riding on.  He said he no sense in doing
this project.  He said this project was approved long before he and Commissioner McCarty came on the Board. He said







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 7


he sees this as just another “door knob and another door stopper.”  He said the County standards should never be
compromised and if this road was going to be built, then it needed to meet County specifications.  He said at some point
in time, property owners might sell off a large tract of land and several homes might be built on this road.  


Mr. Krakeel commented that the donation of right-of-way was consistent with the County policy and sufficient right-of-way
was donated to allow the road to be constructed under the County’s policy for paving dirt roads.  He said a small
segment was acquired or is in the process of being acquired having to do with a cul-de-sac at the very end.  He said the
County policy does require 80% of the frontage of the roadway to be donated and that has occurred.  


Commissioner Brown remarked that this paving would have to comply with County specifications and these should never
be compromised.  


Mr. Adams asked for the Board to provide staff with direction on this project.  


Mr. Krakeel recommended that the Board direct staff to communicate with the property owners that are currently along
that segment of the roadway to determine if they are willing to donate the necessary right-of-way and fully understand
the impact of building a road to the full construction extent of County standards.  He said this might be a moot issue.


Chairman Frady said this item would be placed on the Board’s April 28  agenda for further discussion and the Boardth


agreed.  


NEW BUSINESS:
3. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning


Ordinance, Section 5-47. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers:


Commissioner Brown interjected that the PDF backup document for the proposed amendments was garbled and he
questioned anything the Board might approve tody.  Chairman Frady said this could be cleaned up and brought back
to the Board later but Mr. Dutton could proceed with his presentation at this meeting.
     
Zoning Director Dennis Dutton discussed proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter
20 Zoning Ordinance, Section 5-47. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers   A copy of the request
and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said this
was coming to the Board as a result of the ordinance approved by the Board at the December 9, 2010 meeting.  He said
in review of the ordinance and as applications have come in for towers, staff noticed that petitioners were having difficulty
in understanding this ordinance verbiage and inconsistencies was staff.  He said staff was proposing was to change
some of the language in order to make the ordinance more explanatory and easy to understand.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel said he had reviewed the PDF file and found it difficult to determine what the strike
through markings were and he recommended in order for the Board to make an informed decision about this issue that
the Board have a clean set of the proposed amendments together with explanatory material for the changes at the
Board’s next meeting.  


There was a consensus that this item be discussed further at the April 14  meeting.th







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 8


4. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to increase the yard waste tipping fees to meet projected yard
waste operation expenditures:


Director of Utility Services Tony Parrott discussed staff’s recommendation to increase the yard waste tipping fees to meet
projected yard waste operation expenditures.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said this rate increase would cover expenses and give about
3% above that.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel said that previously when this item had been discussed there had been questions
from the Board specifically with the collection of fees at the toll station and whether or not fees were being collected
consistent with the schedule both for residential users and commercial haulers.  He said this process had been audited
and staff was confident that the fees were being collected appropriately for the yard waste that was being dumped.  


After a brief discussion, there was a consensus that this item would be placed on the April14  Board agenda forth


consideration.  


5. Consideration of a request from the Health Department for additional cleaning of their facility:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel discussed a request that he had received from the Health Department for additional
cleaning of their facility.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.  A copy of the backup documentation was submitted to the Board prior to the meeting , identified as
“Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  He said he had discussed County staff
and their work load and what they could assist the Health Department with in respect to the issue of cleanliness.  He said
County staff had met with the Health Department Manager and made every effort to try to provide as much cleaning
services as could be accomplished given the limited staff and schedule of staff assigned to clean not only the
Administrative Complex but the Justice Center.  He said in February, 2011 the Chairman had received a letter from the
Chairman of the Board of Health regarding this issue and requesting additional cleaning services that they would expect
the County to provide.  He said the scope of those cleaning services was far above and beyond anything that the County
could provide given the limited resources that the County has with responsibilities of cleaning this facility and the Justice
Center.  He said he had asked staff to determine the cost of having an outside cleaning service come in under a contract
basis specifically for the Health Department.  He said the Board has the information relative to that issue.  He said the
prices that were obtained ranged from $400 per month to a high of approximately $1,300 per month.  He said Health
Department staff indicated that there is no funding within their budget to accomplish this objective and they are
requesting that the County provide this service.  He said the Board had agreed last year to allow utilization of a portion
of the space at the Health Department for a Federally funded program known as Women, Infants and Children which
is coordinated through the Region IV Health District.  He noted that County staff had performed all of the necessary
remodeling work at no cost to the State to accomplish that objective and subsequently did enter into an agreement to
provide that space and ancillary usage of other spaces for that program and there has not been a charge for that rental
fee.  He said it was his understanding that  since this is a Federal program, expenditures such as a rental fee and utility
fee can be recovered through the Federal program as an appropriate expense of the program.  He said he would come
back to the Board at a later date with some specific recommendations as to how the County can meet their request up
to a point and at the same time make this a revenue neutral issue for the County.  


Commissioner Brown said he would like to have a copy of the Health Department’s infectious control standards and also
an explanation from the Health Department staff as to how they are meeting these standards.  He remarked that during
his experience from managing some specialty practices for years, that the practice handled the infectious control was







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 6, 2011


Page 9


handled by the staff at the practice.  He said he would dare say that there was no one in the private sector that was not
doing it that way.  


Mr. Krakeel further remarked that he has had discussions with the WICK program manager who indicated that they were
looking for additional space since the County would not have additional space at this facility.  He said the Health
Department has looked at utilizing a modular facility at a location in the County but he had not heard back from them.


Commissioner Horgan interjected that the property at the First Manassas Mile location was not acceptable to the Health
Department.  He questioned the obligation of the County to have WICK in the Health Department.


Mr. Krakeel replied that the County has a contract with them that was effective through June 30 2011 to provide them, 


space and it does require the County to provide the WICK program and District IV Health a 60 day notice if there was
an attempt on the part of Fayette County to modify the current agreement and/or terminate the agreement.  He said there
would have to be a decision prior to May 1  in order to meet the time frame of the contract requirement.  st


Commissioner Horgan pointed out that there were several vacant properties including medical offices and buildings
including the old mental health facility that might be suitable for them.  He said he just could not agree with the County
going to the expense of installing sinks and a lot of other related things at their current location.  He said the Health
Department could certainly use the additional space and this might start that thinking process.  


Mr. Krakeel remarked that the cleaning of the WICK facility would not disappear even if they relocated to another
location.  He said this was a Health Department issue and not a WICK issue.  He said the Board would need to provide
staff direction on how to deal with the issue.  
 
Chairman Frady said the Board would wait to hear back from Mr. Krakeel for discussion at a Thursday night meeting
and the Board agreed.


REPORTS:
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:
There were none.  


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:
COMMISSIONER BROWN: Commissioner Brown asked for clarification on a fact that he had been made aware of and
that was that the newly appointed Elections Board member Addison Lester is a cousin to Commissioner Lee Hearn.
Commissioner Hearn confirmed that Addison Lester was a distant cousin.  Commissioner Brown said he felt it would
have been appropriate to have disclosed that relationship during the Board’s discussion of this appointment.  


CHAIRMAN FRADY: Chairman Frady said he would like to thank Commissioner Hearn for his article in the newspaper.
He said this article was “right on target” and he felt this was a great thing for the citizens to read.  


ADJOURNMENT:   Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner Hearn made a motion to
adjourn the meeting at 4:45 p.m.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.                     
___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                     Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28  day of April, 2011.  th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


April 14, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”,  and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, April 14, 2011, at   7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk
____________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Chairman Frady called the April 14, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.
Commissioner Hearn gave the Invocation and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Horgan moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1.  Presentation of a Proclamation for “National Telecommunicators Week”, April 10-16, 2011.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel made a few comments and presented the Proclamation for “National
Telecommunications Week” to Director of Communications Cheryl Rogers and other Telecommunication
Officers and Practitioners who were present.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 2


2. Recognition of Floyd Jones who has received designation as a Certified County Clerk.


The Board of Commissioners recognized Floyd Jones as a Certified County Clerk.  County Clerk and Executive
Assistant to the Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler spoke about Deputy Clerk Floyd Jones’ designation
as a Certified County Clerk.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Steve Smithfield: Mr. Steve Smithfield spoke about the County’s change of priorities from the East Fayetteville Bypass
to the West Fayetteville Bypass, and he detailed the timeframe of when the priorities changed.  He commented that there
is virtually no support for the West Fayetteville Bypass expressed by the public.  He spoke about Commissioner Hearn’s
comments about losing personal property in order to supply water to the citizens of Palmetto, Georgia, and how the road
project is different than supplying water to a town.  He noted that the people had voted in two new commissioners with
“Anti-West Bypass platforms”, and called on Commissioner Hearn to join them if he wanted to represent the people of
Fayette County.  He further asked Chairman Frady and Commissioners Hearn and Horgan to rescind the appointment
of Mr. Addison Lester to the Board of Elections, and he called on all the Commissioners and county employees to
“disclose if they have any interest in land within the alignment of the West Bypass”.


Ray Watt: Mr. Ray Watt said if his comments had themes associated with them they would be “transparency, honesty,
and high-ethical office holders.”  He questioned the County Administrator’s suggestion made in January 2011 that taxes
may need to be raised, and asked if earlier reports about the County’s financial stability had been exaggerated by
deferring costs in order help win elections.  He further questioned why newly sworn-in Commissioners McCarty and
Brown were not allowed to observe the Executive Session meeting held on December 29, 2010.  He spoke in opposition
to the West Fayetteville Bypass and particularly against naming it “Veterans Parkway”.  He also commented on
Commissioner Hearn’s story in the “Atlanta Journal and Constitution (AJC)” saying giving up property for water is
different than giving up property to help out developers.  He continued by questioning Commissioner Hearn’s failure to
disclose Mr. Addison Lester as his cousin, and he told the Commissioner that there was plenty of time that he could have
divulged the information.  He mentioned that the national government is dysfunctional and that he thought the local
government was similarly dysfunctional, and he questioned the apparent change of priorities from the West Fayetteville
Bypass to the East Fayetteville Bypass by using Mr. Transmission as an example.  Mr. Watt’s time expired during his
comments.


David Hall: Mr. David Hall spoke about how the West Fayetteville Bypass and its “discreditation”.  He challenged
Fayette’s citizens to consider whether or not they wanted better County leadership and then to run for office.  He spoke
about the financial implications of the West Fayetteville Bypass concluding that the people did not want to pay for it.


Gail Onesi: Mrs. Gail Onesi spoke about the trust bestowed on Commissioners and the sacredness of her vote.  She
said she no longer trusts the Board with the safekeeping of her vote.  She commented on the removal of Marilyn Watts
from the Board of Elections and her replacement by Mr. Addison Lester. She stated that Commissioner Hearn was
deceitful by not disclosing his relationship to Mr. Lester.  She referenced a letter written to The Citizen which closed with
the following statement: Corruption is when a government official rigs things for his private gain.  And I am going to let


the reader decide if you think this case applies.  She said she had thought over that statement, that she thought the
Board did not have her best interest at heart, and that Commissioner Hearn should resign.


Dolly Watt:  Mrs. Watt began by saying her comments were really directed to Chairman Frady and Commissioners
Hearn and Horgan.  She then spoke in opposition to the West Fayetteville Bypass and spoke about the April 6, 2011
article in The Citizen  where Commissioner Hearn challenged citizens to “look at the bigger picture.  She said she has







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 3


looked at the bigger picture, and found that the West Fayetteville Bypass was designed for developers, and that River’s
Elementary school and its associated costs were part of the proof of her findings.  She suggested that the idea of
constructing the West Fayetteville Bypass could have been tabled until after the recession.  She closed saying she would
make it her business to inform the public of the Commissioners’ decisions and she would work hard to get new people
elected in 2012.


Randy Ognio: Mr. Randy Ognio stated that it appeared to him that “no-bid” contracts were acceptable in Fayette County.
He decried the lack of transparency in the Fayette County.  He questioned why the Call Center (which was proposed
by Fayetteville Mayor Ken Steele and was removed from the TIA list at a recent Board meeting) had been put on the
HB 277 project list submitted to the Atlanta Regional Commission.  He claimed that at the March 24th meeting, Chairman
Frady had said: “Georgia Regional Authority has no power”, and he said Commissioner Hearn also held this belief.  He
then referenced a paper he obtained from the Georgia State University Law Review that read: The act gives GRTA the
power to build and operate or force local governments to operate public transportation systems.”  He also spoke about
the lack of Commissioner Hearn’s failure to disclosure his relationship to his cousin, Addison Lester, and he called on
all the Commissioners to work to rescind the vote.  


Tom Waller: Mr. Tom Waller spoke about how he had asked many times in previous meetings for the demand data that
justified the construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He said that Chairman Frady had referenced him to the “Street
Smarts” (Traffic Study for the West Fayetteville Bypass, December 2009) study in order to find his requested information.
Mr. Waller informed the Board that he had read the study, and that while it had various inconsequential information, there
was no conclusion, recommendation, or support for the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He requested the Board to take a
second look at the study, and he felt if the Board did so it would be able to see the lack of information as well.


Denise Ognio: Mrs. Denise Ognio stated that her husband, Randy Ognio, had failed to supply the Board with the
Georgia State University Law Review paper that he had referenced during his comments, and she supplied the paper
to the Board and County staff.  She then spoke in opposition to the recent removal of Marilyn Watts from the Board of
Elections.  She contrasted Mrs. Watts to Mr. Addison Lester saying he did not attend meetings, that she has never met
him, and that she has “yet to see him do anything, be anywhere”.  She asked the Board to reconsider Marilyn Watts for
the position.  During her speech, she stated that she knew Commissioner Hearn and that she thought he “is a great guy”,
but she added that the appointment of Addison Lester was a mistake.  A copy Georgia State University Law Review
paper that was distributed to the Board, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


Tom Halpin: Mr. Tom Halpin began by reminding the Board that he had come to meetings a number of times with
various issues, but this time he was coming to the Board with an issue that his wife had spoken of to him, particularly
the transparency of the county and the availability of Commissioners to speak to the citizens’ concerns.  He spoke of
the change of priority from the East Fayetteville Bypass from the West Fayetteville Bypass, and how that change
occurred during a Board of Commissioners Retreat where inadequate records were kept and no vote was recorded. 
He also asked why information that is available takes so long to become available, and suggested that if more
information were placed on the County’s website the citizens would be able to speak on issues before they are voted
upon.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Brown asked to remove Consent Agenda Items 4 and 6.  Commissioner Horgan moved to remove
Consent Agenda Items 4 and 6 from the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 4


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda items 3-12 excluding Consent Agenda Items 4 and 6.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion. No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


3. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #783 to Bennett Fire Products, Fisher Scientific
Company, North American Fire Equipment Company, FireLine, Inc., and Ten 8 Fire & Safety Equipment
of Georgia for the purchase of protective clothing for the Department of Fire and Emergency Services,
in an amount not to exceed $70,000.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #784 to MAR Trucking, Inc. as primary vendor
and C&J Carriers, LLC. as secondary vendor for dump truck hauling services, for calendar year 2011,
in an amount not to exceed $150,000.


Commissioner Brown said he wanted to be consistent about his issues, and he knew that the hauling services
would be used for road purposes.  He asked if any of the money could be used for the West Fayetteville
Bypass.  Road Department Director Andy Adams replied that some of the money could be used for the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  Commissioner Brown replied that he would be voting against Consent Agenda Item 4.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 4.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in opposition.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s request to accept an FY 2010 Assistance to Firefighters Grant in the amount of
$31,200 from the Federal Emergency Management Agency and the Department of Homeland Security;
and authorization to use $3,600 of the undesignated Fire Fund and $4,200 of the undesignated EMS
Fund to meet the County’s 20% grant obligation.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #785 to Traffic Markings, Inc. as primary vendor and
to Peek Pavement Markings, LLC. as secondary vendor for an annual contract for roadway striping and
pavement marking services to be used on various construction and road maintenance projects, in an
amount not to exceed $130,000.


Commissioner Brown asked if any of the money proposed in the request could be earmarked for the West
Fayetteville Bypass project.  Road Department Director Andy Adams replied that it could be used on the West
Fayetteville Bypass.  Chairman Frady asked what else it could be used for.  Mr. Adams replied that it could be
used for resurfacing subdivision streets, resurfacing Sandy Creek Road, Harp Road, Redwine Road, and any
normal maintenance the Road Department undertakes.  Chairman Frady asked if most people would like the
County to stop doing maintenance. Commissioner Brown replied that the issue was not maintenance, but
“unprioritized” projects.  He noted he would be voting against the Consent request.


Commissioner Horgan moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 6.  He noted that he did not agree with stopping
work such as putting stripes on roads in subdivisions and on streets.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the
motion.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 5


Commissioner Brown replied that he was fully in favor of striping roads when necessary, and he was fully in
favor of not building projects that are not in the top portion of the priority list and have no warrant whatsoever
to build.  Commissioner McCarty added he would be happy to vote for the Consent request if there could be
some designation stating the monies would not be used to construct the bypass projects, since the money
would be coming from “generic county funds” and not out of SPLOST funds.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel explained that the source of the revenue would come either from SPLOST
funds and/or from the operating funds; dependent on the type of project.  He said the intent of the contract is
to get the best price for the striping irrespective of the particular road project.  He clarified that since the funding
source is determined by the road project, if the road project was an operational project it would come from the
operating budget, and if it the project was the West Bypass, as an example, the payment would come from the
SPLOST funds.  Commissioner McCarty stated that if an exclusion could be made of any SPLOST project in
the request, he would be happy to vote for the request.  Chairman Frady replied that he did not know of a way
to do that since “it was all commingled.”  Commissioner Horgan asked if the same situation applied with
Consent Agenda Item 4, and Mr. Krakeel replied that the Consent Item 4 was similar in nature.  


The motion to approve Consent Agenda Item 6 passed 3-2 with Commissioners Brown and McCarty voting in
opposition.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


7. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff’s
Office Criminal Investigations Division by $7,888.37 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work
with various Federal Agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to increase the Criminal Investigations Division’s Gasoline
Vendors account by $1,068.93 to account for a reimbursement from the U.S. Marshals Service for
gasoline expenditures incurred for the purchase of a vehicle for Fayette County.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to increase the Criminal Investigations Division’s Vehicle Repair
Services account by $9.96 to account for a reimbursement from the U.S. Marshals Service for expenses
incurred for the maintenance of the vehicle that was purchased for Fayette County.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


10. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to authorize the replacement of two totaled patrol vehicles, with
funding for the vehicles and their ancillary equipment, in an amount of $50,290.00, to be provided from
the Vehicle Replacement Fund.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of staff’s recommendation to increase the yard-waste tipping fees at the County’s landfill to
meet projected yard-waste operation expenses.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 12",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of the March 24, 2011 Board of Commissioners Minutes.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 6


OLD BUSINESS:


13. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinance, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinances, Sec. 5-47.  Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers.


Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton explained the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 5-47. Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and
Towers to the Board.  Chairman Frady and Commissioners Brown, Horgan, and McCarty commended Mr.
Dutton and the Planning and Zoning Department for their work in this matter.


Commissioner Brown moved to authorize staff to proceed with the scheduling of a public hearing for the
proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 5-47.
Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 13",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 


NEW BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of the Sheriff’s request for additional funding, in the amount of $31,654.74 for the
remainder of the current 2011 Fiscal Year, in order to increase medical staffing by 1.47 persons per
week for inmate healthcare due to a 16% increase in the inmate population for Calendar Year 2010.


Major Charlie Cowart gave his presentation and request to the Board.


Commissioner Horgan asked if the contract had been bid out recently, especially since the same company had
been in use since 2003, and he asked if other options had been explored.  Major Cowart replied that the
Sheriff’s Office had compared costs and that it is paying comparable to what other surrounding agencies are
currently paying.  He said the Sheriff’s Office is very comfortable with the company since they have provided
excellent service, and that the Sheriff’s Office feels it is getting proper care for a proper price.  


Commissioner Horgan asked if the jail’s population increase signified a trend that would continue through the
rest of the year and in subsequent years.  Major Cowart replied that the trend did show an increase for the
current and future years, and he gave explanation.


Chairman Frady noted that it was unusual to have this type of budgetary request so close to the new budget
year, and he asked if there was any reason why the request could not be delayed until the new Fiscal Year
2012 budget was under discussion or in operation.  Major Cowart replied that the Sheriff’s Office could “make
do with what it has”, and reiterated that the company has not requested an increase until now.  


Commissioner Brown noted that when a contract is established it is based on an average inmate population
for the year.  Major Cowart concurred.  Commissioner Brown asked why the contract had not been revised to
account for a newer or updated average of the inmate population.  Major Cowart answered that the inmate
population did not significantly rise in previous years, but in the last couple of years there has been a steady
increase in the inmate population followed by a strong and sustained spike in the population in the last year.
Commissioner Brown asked if records were being kept of how many inmates were receiving medical or
psychological treatment per month.  Major Cowart replied that the medical providers were keeping the records,
that the numbers of those being treated were consistent with the number of inmates, and he speculated it may







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 7


be due in part to the State of Georgia closing a number of psychological hospitals.  Commissioner Brown noted
that in Fiscal Year 2011, the inmates had dental care but it was not listed in Fiscal Year 2012.  Major Cowart
replied that dental services would still be rendered through a contractor used by the medical provider.  


Commissioner McCarty asked if there were 300 inmates in the jail and if the amount of money being requested
was $50  per inmate per month.  He also asked if  there are more inmates who were sick that have to be
treated.  Major Cowart replied inmates are increasingly coming in with more medical problems than in the past.
Commissioner McCarty asked, of the 300 inmates, what is the percentage of those who are sick.  Major Cowart
said he could not speculate on that, but noted that the healthcare being provided is not just for treating sick
inmates but is also preventative care while the inmates were incarcerated.  He explained that when an inmate
comes to the jail an assessment is conducted by the medical staff, and within two weeks a complete physical
is given to the inmate to determine any type of medical issues they may have.  Commissioner McCarty asked
if  the jail was providing the services of a hospital and was providing free medical care.  Major Cowart replied
that the Sheriff’s Office was required to provide adequate medical care to inmates with “the same access they
would have if they were on the outside”.   Commissioner McCarty then asked what percentage of sick people
are in jail that would cause an increase in medical expenses since it appeared that the medical costs could
“possibly go down”.  Major Cowart replied that there were many inmates that required medical care, and that
the Sheriff’s Office was required to give medical care.  Commissioner McCarty asked what percentage of the
300 inmates required medical care and the cost per patient.  Major Cowart replied that at some point every
inmate would see medical staff for something ranging from a headache to an existing condition or a condition
that manifests itself while in jail.  Commissioner McCarty replied that at a $50 a month increase of medical costs
for treating headaches, for instance, was a big cost.  Major Cowart agreed it was a lot of money, said as a
taxpayer he did not like it either, but he thought the cost for inmate healthcare was less than the County spent
on employee healthcare. Commissioner McCarty replied that he hoped so “since the County’s employees
certainly deserved better healthcare than people who break the law”.  The Commissioner concluded that he
wanted to see the contract put out for bid in order to determine who would provide the best service for the best
price.


Commissioner Brown noticed a 40% increase in the cost of living index during the previous five years, and that
the contract had not been bid out in eight years, so he urged the Sheriff’s Office to “take a serious look at the
issue and see if there is someone who can possibly make up some of the 40% cost of living index that has
been realized in the past five years”.  He suggested  that lower rates could be realized because the company
wants to keep business with the Sheriff.  He thought that reexamining the issue was the prudent thing to do in
this economy, especially considering the position the County is finding itself in financially, and he thought that
taking money out of the end of the fiscal year would create a financial burden on the County.  He concluded
that he wanted  to see “[the contract] bid out in order to tell the taxpayers that they are getting the best service
for the best cost”.


Chairman Frady replied that he did not think the current timeframe allowed for an RFP to be put out for a bid
this year since the process takes longer than two months.  Commissioner Brown replied that he was not willing
to give the increase based on the current contact with the Sheriff’s Office, but he wanted to see it bid out for
Fiscal Year 2012.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel added that it was his understanding that the current contract is a fairly
complex contract with a number of performance standards that have been developed in the contract, and that
he would have to defer to the Sheriff to determine whether or not there is sufficient time prior to the July 1st start
of the fiscal year to put out a RFP, receive proposals, evaluate the proposals, and get them in place prior to







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 8


the adoption of the budget.  He reminded the Board that it was scheduled to adopt the budget during the first
and second public hearings in June, and explained that the timeframe for bidding the contract would be
narrowed substantially.  He said he has had discussions with Major Cowart as well as the Dr. Yousef, who is
the current contract provider who owns the firm, about developing a proposal to the county to look at a
“comprehensive approach to healthcare not only for the inmate population but also employee healthcare to see
if there is efficiencies and economies of scale that can be achieved by having healthcare services delivered
directly in a comprehensive manner, including workers compensation case reviews, medical case reviews, pre-
employment physicals, post-employment physicals for hazardous duty, ongoing healthcare, and a whole realm
of services that are being provided to the Sheriff’s Department”.  He concluded that  it was his belief that over
the course of the next month, especially because budget reviews would begin next week, that it would really
press the timeframe to get an appropriate and adequate RFP between now and June 1st.  


Mr. Krakeel also informed the Board that it was his intention to have this broader discussion as part of the
budget process to determine how to move forward into next year with respect to the multiple issues regarding
healthcare.  He said he did believe there were opportunities that should be explored to lower overall healthcare
costs as the County moves forward.  He reminded the Board very that the County’s healthcare costs are
approaching $5 million dollars just for employee healthcare.  He added that the immediate contract request for
an  increase of funds would equate to about $190,000 next fiscal year, and that the increase, if approved,
would increase inmate healthcare costs to an  excess of $1 million a year.  He clarified that the last Fiscal Year
2010 inmate healthcare budget for the  current contract and other associated healthcare costs was
approximately $868,000;and that the addition of $198,000 would increase the County’s budget to over $1
million for inmate healthcare costs.  He concluded that he thought this was an appropriate discussion for the
Board to have during its budget deliberations.  


Commissioner Brown said he would still be in favor of extending the contract only in order to obtain a RFP since
it was the County’s fiduciary responsibility to the taxpayers. Chairman Frady replied that “it could be to
everyone’s advantage if the discussion was deferred until the budget discussions where something could be
worked out”.  He said he knew “there were costs and they would have to be covered, and that maybe some
dialog could be reached that would help everybody in some way”.  


Major Cowart added that the Sheriff has had experience in the past with medical plans that were less than
ample at times, and that the Sheriff’s Office “was very satisfied with the medical care the company provides,
and that there are companies popping up left and right that want to provide the services simply because they
see dollar signs”. He did not believe there was a need to fix a system if it was working.  


Chairman Frady noted that 54 of the prisoners were State prisoners that have not been moved to State facilities
Major Cowart replied that the number of State inmates varies from day to day, but approximately 15% of the
prisoners on any given day are State sentenced prisoners waiting for the State to take custody of.  He further
reported that 70% of the prisoners are “pre-trial” meaning they either have no bond, or they “cannot make bond
so they are awaiting trial”.  He added that the remaining 15% of inmates are serving misdemeanor sentences
and would complete their time in the County jail.  


Chairman Frady added that the average stay for inmates in jail used to be approximately 18 days before they
were moved out, but now the average stay has increased to approximately 23 days.  He noted that the increase
in days makes a big difference when each inmate costs $72 daily.  He asked if the Board wanted to continue
this discussion at during the budget considerations and address it at that time.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 9


Mr. Krakeel added that the Board needed to provide direction, and that it was to the Sheriff’s advantage to know
the Board’s intention as soon as possible.  He reminded the Board that, obviously, the Sheriff will make his own
decision regarding whether or not to move forward with an RFP since that is strictly within his purview.  He said,
with respect to the specific request, he thought that the Board was desiring a broader discussion about the
specific request to increase that kind of thing during the budget process.  


Commissioner Brown asked for data from the health provider which “stratified” the types of medical care and
how many patients are being seeing in that strata each month so he could do a comparison of “where the
County is going and what types of numbers are being considered”.


The Board unanimously consented to table the Sheriff’s request until the upcoming Fiscal Year 2012 budget
hearings where a broader discussion could be held about the specific request to increase the contract.  A copy
of the request, identied as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


REPORTS:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS


There were no Administrator’s Reports.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS


Commissioner Allen McCarty: Commissioner McCarty reported on three items: 1) the inability of some constituents
to retrieve their money from the Court; 2) his and Commissioner Brown’s opposition to the proposed roundabout at the
intersection of Lee’s Mill Road and the West Fayetteville Bypass; and 3) trivia about ants.


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Steve Brown said he was grateful to live in Fayette County, complemented
the constituents for their active involvement in County politics, and thanked Mr. Randy Ognio for providing his thoughts
to the Board concerning GRTA.


Chairman Frady: Chairman Herb Frady responded to Mr. Randy Ognio’s remarks, that he attributed to Chairman Frady,
that “GRTA has no power.”  Chairman Frady corrected Mr. Ognio by saying he had said “GRTA has no power over our
zoning.”  He acknowledged that GRTA can do a lot, but that they cannot touch zoning.


Commissioner Lee Hearn: Commissioner Hearn commented on his non disclosure of his relationship to Addison Lester,
who was recently appointed to the Board of Elections.  He apologized for the lack of disclosure and he reemphasized
Mr. Lester’s credentials for the Board of Elections.







Board of Commissioners Minutes
April 14, 2011
Page 10


ADJOURNMENT


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the April 14, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting. Commissioner Brown
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned their April 14, 2011 Meeting at 8:26 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk                      Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 28th day of April 2011.


___________________________________
Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval to authorize the Sheriff to dispose of three vehicles for the purpose of acquiring one replacement vehicle; and authorization for 


the Chairman to execute all necessary paperwork for the disposition of the vehicles and the acquisition of the replacement vehicle, using 


Federal Seizure Funds for any balance due.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office is requesting to dispose (sell/trade) of three vehicles which have high mileage and have outlived their 


usefulness with the Sheriff's Office.  The vehicles include a silver in color 2007 Chevrolet Suburban bearing , 


a black in color 2002 Pontiac Grand Prix bearing VIN# , and a gray in color 2002 Cadillac Escalade bearing VIN# 


.  


 


All three of the vehicles were purchased with Federal Seizure Funds and any proceeds from the sale/trade of these vehicles must be 


placed into the originating funds to be used for law enforcement purposes.  These vehicles will be traded in toward the acquisition of one 


comparable vehicle which will require the Chairman to sign the necessary registration, tag and title paperwork. 


Motion to authorize the Sheriff to dispose of three vehicles for the purpose of acquiring one replacement vehicle; and authorization for the 


Chairman to execute all necessary paperwork for the disposition of the vehicles and the acquisition of the replacement vehicle, using 


Federal Seizure Funds for any balance due.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


April 28, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


1. Presentation of the Heartsaver Award by the American Heart Association
representative Mike Willingham to Russell Sharpe, Denise Clayburn, Matt
Myers, Michael Nations, David Winkles and Jonathan Kempler for saving the
life of Mr. Mike Aquino on January 31, 2011.


PUBLIC HEARING:


2. Consideration of Petition No. 1221-11, Storage Xxtra Hwy. 85, LLC., Owner,
and Fred Rickman, Jr., Agent, request to rezone 18.139 acres from M-1 to
PUD-PSBC to allow a mixture of uses within the O-I, C-C, C-H, and M-1
zoning districts.  This property is located in Land Lot 200 of the 5th District and
fronts on SR 85 North.


3. Consideration of the Packaged Beer and Wine Sales License for RaceTrac
Petroleum, Inc. d/b/a RaceTrac #192, 897 Highway 85 South, Fayetteville,
Georgia, RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc., Owner, and Gabriel G. Wallace,
Corporate Agent/Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 70 of the 5th


District, fronts Ramah Road and SR 85 South, and is zoned C-H.  This is for
a New Location.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


4. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County renew its annual
Agreement with the University of Georgia for the provision of Extension Office
Programs in Fayette County for a period beginning July 1, 2010 through June
30, 2012; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement.


5. Approval to transfer $4,502 from the County’s Contingency Fund to Elections
Department budget to cover the balance of the cost of repairs to voting
equipment; and approval to purchase two AccuVote-OS Optical Scanners at
a cost of $1,940, for a total request for funds from the Contingency Fund of
$6,442.00


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
April 28, 2011
Page 2


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc.
(MCES) to conduct quarterly groundwater monitoring as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection
Division, at a quarterly cost of $3,859; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement pending
approval of the County Attorney.


7. Approval for the Chairman to execute any and all required documents associated with the annual renewal and
implementation of options for Employee Health Care Benefits, including but not limited to agreements and
contracts, for the benefits year which begins June 1, 2011.


8. Approval of a Resolution to adopt the “Fayette County 2010 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fee
(FY2010), including Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvement Element and
Short-Term Work Program (FY2011-FY2015.)”


9. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division
by $4,087.54 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


10. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the State Confiscated Revenue Technical Services Revenue
Account by $40.00 to recognize abandoned monies which have been ordered retained for law enforcement
enhancement.


11. Approval to authorize the Sheriff to dispose of three vehicles for the purpose of acquiring one replacement
vehicle; and authorization for the Chairman to execute all necessary paperwork for the disposition of the
vehicles and the acquisition of the replacement vehicle, using Federal Seizure Funds for any balance due.


12. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to insert a flyer from The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater in the
water bills to be mailed out during the month of May.


13. Approval of the April 6, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the April 14, 2011 Board of
Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


14. Further discussion of a request from the Physical Health Department for additional cleaning services and costs
associated with providing space and ancillary services to that agency.  


15. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the Strategic Technology and Risk Assessment Plan developed by
LBL Technology Partners be accepted by the County as the basis for the County’s five-year plan identifying
future technology initiatives and the reduction of risks associated with the County’s technology systems.  


NEW BUSINESS:


16. Steve Vaughn with GEBCorp will present the annual valuation report on the County’s defined benefit retirement
plan.


17. Consideration of preferred provider agreements under the County’s employee health care plan that will address
sleep disorder diagnostics and associated durable medical equipment as well as digestive healthcare
procedures.







Agenda
April 28, 2011
Page 3


18. Consideration of proposed Amendment to the County’s Flexible Benefits Plan as required by the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010.


REPORTS:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division by $4,087.54 for 


reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 


federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 


Investigations Division ( ) by $4,087.54 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2010-2011 


Fiscal Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $167,423.05.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of staff's request for authorization to insert a flyer from The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater  in the water bills to be mailed out 


during the month of May.


The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater located in Peachtree City has requested that the County consider inserting a flyer in the water 


bills that are mailed out during the month of May advertising the Summer Concerts Series. 


 


There is no cost to the County for this request.  


 


Motion to approve staff's request for authorization to insert a flyer from The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater  in the water bills to be 


mailed out during the month of May.


N/A


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentApril 28, 2011









		Water System -The Fred Summer Concert Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System -The Fred Summer Concert Backup

		PostcardFront[1].pdf








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration Jack Krakeel 


Further discussion of a request from the Physical Health Department for additional cleaning services and costs associated with providing 


space and ancillary services to that agency.


Staff from the Health Department has requested a higher level of cleaning for their department than they have previously received. 


Heretofore, the County's custodial crew has done the cleaning of the Health Department but they would like more. 


 


The Administrator will present the issues and possible solutions to accommodate the needs of the Health and how the additional request 


could/should be funded.  


 


This item was discussed at the April 6 Workshop but the Board asked for more information, which the Administrator will provide. The new 


discussion may involve information centered around the space the County provides to the Health Department and the history/justification 


for doing so. 


 


Supplemental information pertaining to this discussion was still being prepared at the time of the agenda's publication, and will be 


provided at the meeting.  This information can also be made available upon request.


Hear additional information from Administrator. A consensus on how to proceed is needed from the Board.


Yes Wednesday, April 6, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, April 28, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


County Extension Sheldon Hammond


Approval of staff's recommendation that the County renew its annual Agreement with the University of Georgia for the provision of  


Extension Office Programs in Fayette County for a period beginning July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012; and authorization for the 


Chairman to execute said agreement.


For decades, the University of Georgia has provided counties in Georgia with a host of services and programs through what is commonly 


known as the Cooperative Extension Office. Originally, the Extension Service focused primarily on agriculture needs of property owners 


and farmers throughout the state. Over time, those needs have changed and so has Cooperative Extension. The Extension programs 


and services have evolved over time to help meet the needs of the communities in which they serve. Some of those changes are based 


on agriculture, horticulture, natural resources and water management. Youth programs have also been added and they too have evolved 


to help teach leadership, interpersonal, familial, service-based, and overall life skills to school age children. 


In Fayette County, the Cooperative Extension Office provides programs for 4-H Youth Development, Georgia Performance Standards 


School Enrichment, horse club, two award winning shooting clubs as well as an active middle and high school leadership and community 


development program. We also provide educational components for the County’s Water Permit. Urban agriculture education includes 


programs like the Master Gardeners, pesticide certification, water utilization, and soil and water testing. 


Each year, the County must renew its notification to the University of Georgia that Fayette County wishes to maintain its relationship 


which provides these services and more. Also, Fayette County provides some personnel-related funding for the Extension Service to 


augment the budget from UGA. In keeping with budgetary limitations, the County Extension submitted a reduced operating budget from 


last year. The overall budget has increased slightly due to the approval of hiring an agent that focuses on natural resource education.


Request the Fayette County Board of Commissioners to notify the University of Georgia that Fayette County wishes to enter into an 


agreement for the continuation of the Cooperative Extension Office for a period beginning July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012, and 


authorization for the Chairman to execute the said notification (in triplicate).


Funding included in the proposed FY 2012 Budget.


Yes Annually


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011







 
    
 
   
 
 
 
Northwest District Extension  
1109 Experiment St.     
Flynt Bldg., Room 227 
Griffin, GA 30223 
 
 
Dear Mr. Price, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to notify you that we wish to amend the agreement between the 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners and the Board of Regents of the University System of 
Georgia, on behalf of the University of Georgia Cooperative Extension, for the provision of 
Extension Programs to our County.  The term of this agreement shall be from July 1, 2011 
through June, 2012.  An annual budget is attached.  
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Chairman 
Board of Commissioners 
Fayette County, Georgia 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
County Extension Coordinator       Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
District Extension Director        Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Associate Dean for Extension- CES, UGA      Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Dean & Director of Agriculture and Environmental Sciences, UGA   Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Vice-President for Public Service & Outreach, UGA    Date 







 
Fayette County  


Board of Commissioners 
July 1, 2011-June 30, 2012 


Fiscal Year 2012 
 


ANNUAL SALARY 
Craig Gross, CEC, 4-H Agent 12,000.00 
Vacant, ANR Agent 14,000.00 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 13,419.00 
 39,419.00 
ANNUAL BENEFITS 
Teacher’s Retirement (10.28%)                                                                
Craig Gross, CEC, 4-H Agent 1,233.60 
Vacant, ANR Agent 1,439.20 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 1,379.47 
 4,052.27 
Social Security (7.65%) 
Craig Gross, CEC 4-H Agent 918.00 
Vacant, ANR Agent 1,071.00 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 1,026.55 
 3,015.55 
Health Insurance 
Craig Gross, CEC 4-H Agent 3,403.28 
Vacant, ANR Agent  3,403.28 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 6,538.46                
 13,345.02 
Life Insurance 
Craig Gross, CEC, 4-H Agent 18.60 
Vacant ANR Agent 18.60 
Jeanette Martin, Secretary 34.92 
 72.12 
 
Yearly Total  $ 59,904.00 
 
 
*UGA will disperse all payroll, tax and insurance payments for employees and will bill Fayette 
County monthly for Fayette County’s actual contribution to total. 
 
Please send the bill to the following address: 
Mary Holland Finance Director 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 







 COUNTY EXTENSION PERSONNEL CONTRACT/MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Between 


THE BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM OF GEORGIA 
On Behalf of 


THE UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA COOPERATIVE EXTENSION  
And the 


    FAYETTE   COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
In accordance with the Smith-Lever Act of the U.S. Congress of 1914, an agreement between The Board of Regents of the 
University of Georgia system on behalf of the University of Georgia Extension and the U.S. Department of Agriculture to conduct 
Extension work in Georgia, and by virtue of the authority conferred upon the governing authority of the county under Article 9, 
Section 4, Paragraph 2, of the Constitution as amended in 1983, as implemented in the O.C.G.A. #20-2-62 and O.C.G.A. #48-5-
220, 10, the ___ FAYETTE____  County Board of Commissioners hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY and the Board of Regents 
of the University  of Georgia by and on behalf of  the UGA Extension hereinafter referred to as the UGA EXTENSION do hereby 
agree to cooperate in the operation of an Extension education program in agriculture, natural resources and environmental 
management, family and consumer science, 4-H/youth work, and subjects related thereto in           FAYETTE_      County. 
 


SECTION I 
The UGA EXTENSION shall: 
 
1. - employ and supervise County Extension personnel. It shall be the responsibility of the UGA EXTENSION to establish 


minimum qualifications for County Extension personnel, certify the qualifications of all applicants, and to determine the total 
salary applicants are to be paid.  


 
2. - appoint County Extension personnel in compliance with Equal Employment Opportunity regulations and subject to the 


approval of the COUNTY.   
 
3. - in the event the work of any County Extension staff member becomes unsatisfactory to the COUNTY, it shall be the 


responsibility of the COUNTY to communicate this dissatisfaction to the District Extension Director of the UGA 
EXTENSION.  It shall then be the responsibility of the UGA EXTENSION to appropriately deal with the dissatisfaction and 
advise the COUNTY of action taken, if any.  The UGA EXTENSION shall have the right to terminate or transfer personnel 
from the county.  In either case, a replacement will be selected for the county, following the procedure described above.  


 
4. - keep at all times an accurate record of all funds received and disbursed under this agreement including all support 


documents.  The UGA EXTENSION shall retain such records for a period of three (3) years unless an audit has begun but 
not been completed or if the audit findings have not been resolved at the end of three (3) year period.  In such cases, the 
records shall be retained until the audit is complete or until the resolution of the audit findings.  


 
5. - carry out all work under this agreement in accordance with the administrative and other requirements, including personnel 


matters, established by the University of Georgia, federal and state laws, regulations, and standards.   
 
6. - provide County Extension personnel with the necessary stationery, envelopes, publications and other educational 


materials needed for an effective program.  The UGA EXTENSION also agrees to plan, implement and conduct training as 
necessary to keep County Extension personnel adequately prepared to conduct effective, relevant Extension programs. 


 
7. - pay a portion of the salary and associated benefits of  County Extension personnel at a rate in compliance with the Board 


of Regents  and the UGA EXTENSION salary administration policies.    
 
8. - reimburse all County Extension personnel directly for expenses incurred on behalf of the UGA EXTENSION for officially 


designated travel outside             FAYETTE           County as authorized by the District Extension Director. 
 
9. - support County Extension personnel and the Extension program in          FAYETTE              County with necessary 


assistance of district and state subject matter and supervisory personnel and other resources as available from the 
University of Georgia, the University System of Georgia, and other agencies and organizations with whom the UGA 
EXTENSION cooperates. 


 
10. - report to the         FAYETTE          County Board of Commissioners at regular intervals on the nature of the County 


Extension program and progress being made.  
 


SECTION II 
The COUNTY shall:  
1. - provide a suitable County Extension office; the suitability of the office to be agreed on by all parties.  The COUNTY 


further agrees to provide sufficient funds to pay for necessary office supplies, office equipment, telephone, utilities, 
postage, demonstration materials, janitorial service and other items necessary for the operation of an effective Extension 
education program. 


 
2. - provide a portion of the salaries and associated benefits of County Extension personnel as shall be agreed upon by UGA 


EXTENSION and the COUNTY.  Salary and benefits, including leave, shall be calculated according to policies established 
by the Board of Regents.  The UGA EXTENSION will provide monthly statements to the COUNTY reflecting the COUNTY 







portion of benefits and/or salary.  COUNTY reimbursement for county portion of benefits will be made to the UGA 
EXTENSION in the full amount upon receipt of the statement.  COUNTY reimbursement for county portion of salary shall 
be paid monthly by the COUNTY directly to County Extension personnel unless some other method is agreed upon in 
writing by the UGA EXTENSION and the COUNTY. 


 
3. - when an individual terminates employment through resignation or retirement, and chooses to take a lump-sum payment 


for accumulated annual leave, the COUNTY agrees to pay their share of the annual leave payment in accordance with 
UGA leave policy. 


   
4. - reimburse the travel expenses of County Extension personnel for official travel on behalf of ___FAYETTE____                          


County.   The reimbursement shall be paid monthly by the COUNTY directly to County Extension personnel unless some 
other method is agreed upon in writing by the UGA EXTENSION and the COUNTY. 


 
5. - approve or disapprove appointment recommendations of County Extension personnel. 
 
6. -notify the District Extension Director of the UGA EXTENSION if the work of any County Extension staff member is 


unsatisfactory to the COUNTY. 
 


7. - evaluate financial support to the UGA EXTENSION annually, make adjustments as necessary for continued effective 
support, and to notify the UGA EXTENSION of these adjustments.  


 
SECTION III 


 
1. This Contract/Memorandum shall take effect when it is executed by the        FAYETTE        COUNTY BOARD OF 


COMMISSIONERS and the UGA EXTENSION.   
 
2. The term of this Agreement shall be from             ___________________            until rescinded.    It may be terminated by 


either party by written notice of such intent provided ninety (90) days in advance. 
 
3. This Agreement may be modified by mutual written agreement of the parties hereto.  
  
4. This Agreement may be renewed annually by letter of agreement signed by the parties hereto. 
 
5. Neither party to this agreement will discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment or against any 


applicant for enrollment at any school or college or against any student in his/her course of study or training because of 
race, color, sex, creed, national origin, age, disability, or veteran status. 


 
 
______    ______________________________________________________________ 
Date     


Chairman, Board of Commissioners, _________FAYETTE______ County 
 
 
______    _______________________________________________________________ 
Date     


County Extension Coordinator, ______FAYETTE____ County 
 
 
______    _______________________________________________________________ 
Date    District Extension Director 
 
 
______    _______________________________________________________________ 
Date    Associate Dean for Extension, Cooperative Extension 
    University of Georgia 
 
______    _______________________________________________________________ 
Date    Dean and Director, College of Agricultural and Environmental Sciences 
    University of Georgia 
 
______    _______________________________________________________________ 
Date    Vice President for Public Service and Outreach 
    University of Georgia 
 
11/06 
 







Department: County Extension Cost Center: 10010400 
Function: General Government Fund: General 
 


 
MISSION STATEMENT 


 


The mission of the Fayette County Extension is to provide lifelong learning  to the people and to 
respond to people's needs and interest in agriculture and natural resources, families, 4-H and 
youth through education and information, using unbiased, research-based education. 
Fayette County Extension links the resources of the University of Georgia, Fort Valley State 
University, Fayette County and the United States Department of Agriculture to provide 
educational programs, information, and assistance to the citizens of Fayette County.  
 


 
MAJOR DEPARTMENT FUNCTIONS 


 


The Fayette County Cooperative Extension, backed by the resources of Fayette County, the 
University of Georgia, Ft. Valley State College and the Department of Agriculture, provides 
educational programs, information, materials, and actual assistance to the citizens of the county. 
Education and information is also provided to the citizens by telephone consultation, formal 
educational (classroom) programs, school programs, plant clinics, site visits, newsletters, news 
articles, radio and collaboration with other community agencies.  Publications, web site and 
laboratory services are other delivery methods for safe - education and information to the county 
citizens. 
The basic goal of the Fayette County Cooperative Extension Office is to provide information that 
will contribute to learning for life, which, in turn, helps citizens make informed decisions with 
unbiased, research-based information – this improving quality of life. We are also Fayette 
County’s gateway to the University of Georgia and all the resources associated therein. 
 
 


MAJOR FY 2012 GOALS 
• Continue development and utilize an active and efficient Leadership System, made up of 


adults and youth that will help give direction and focus to future program efforts and ideas as 
well as increase our programming scope and outreach. 


• Increase awareness of water quality and quantity through educational efforts, programs, 
newsletters and news articles on storm water management, water runoff, erosion, and 
efficient uses of water in the household and household landscape. 


• Continue the organization and utilization of our Master Gardeners through educational 
programs and plant clinics allowing them to share their knowledge and passions to the people 
of the county. 


• Increase the number of certified and active Master Gardeners by 18. 
• Plan, coordinate, and offer seasonal and timely programs on landscape management, garden 


utilization and horticulture education. These programs will reach over 800 people annually. 
• Plan, advertise and offer two food safety programs designed to help teach clients the safe and 


recommended ways to harvest, process and can their garden produce. 
 







• Increase certified and active volunteers in the youth programs by 10%. All certified 
volunteers will have completed their University of Georgia background screening, have had 
reference checks completed, attended a training on the ages and stages of human 
development and all have been overnight chaperone certified. 


•  Increase youth participation in our 4-H Youth Development programs by: 
o Increasing the number of Fayette County grade schools involved in our science-based 


curriculum. This will include continued development of the three schools added in 
FY 2010, restoring programs in schools lost in FY 2011 and adding four new middle 
school programs.. 


o Increasing the number of 5th and 6th grade youth that participate in the district level 
competition for public speaking and education by 20%. 


o Increasing the scope and depth of our Junior 4-H (middle school aged) program by 
placing a concentrated effort in offering programs and resources to the middle 
schools. We will increase participants by 30%. 


o Create and nourish a Senior 4-H (high school aged) county council that will make 
youth programming decisions and will become active resources for community 
service and leadership opportunities in the county. These youth will also develop and 
initiate a “youth-based” community service project and fund raiser. 


• Increase the number of educational newsletters and articles produced to help educate citizens 
on timely topics, programs and opportunities in the county, area and state. Our goal is to have 
at least one news article per month in the local newspaper and at least one article a quarter in 
a regional magazine. We will also produce a newsletter and distribute it quarterly focusing on 
Agriculture and Natural Resources including water management and utilization, Horticulture, 
4-H Youth Development, and Family and Consumer Sciences. 


 
 


SIGNIFICANT EXPENDITURES/STAFFING CHANGES 
 
With the current budget restrictions and directly from the Board of Commissioners. We have 
reduced our county paid – part time staff by two positions in the past year and half. 
Board approval initiated the hiring process of an experienced agent to work in the Agriculture, 
Natural Resources and Community Gardening program.  
 
 
 
 


Current Staffing – (FTE)* 
Program Assistants FY 2009 FY 2010 


FY 2011 
Requested 


FY 2011 
Adopted 


FY 2012 
Requested 


4-H Youth Development P.A. 2.20 1.68 1.68 1.20 1.20 
Natural Resources/Horticulture P.A. 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 0.73 
Total County Personnel 2.93 2.41 2.41 1.93 1.93 
      
State Partnership Staffing – (FTE)* Salary and benefits shared between County and University 
4-H Youth Development 0.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 
Natural Resources/Horticulture 0.5 0 1.0 .25 1.0 
Administration/Secretarial 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 







WORKLOAD INDICATORS 
 


Workload Indicators 
FY 2008 
Actual 


FY 2009 
Actual 


FY 2010 
Actual 


FY 2011 
Estimated 


Phone Calls Answered 13,151 14,692 14,742 17,865 
Contacts Programming Efforts 111,486 111,994 112,106 105,888 
Volunteer Hours  9,359.25 9,784 9,963 10,167 
4-H Enrollment 2,389 1,778 1,635 1,384 
Leadership Training Participants  377 420 372 
Publications Distributed * 109,562 109,201 108,950 106,542 
Soil Samples Performed 455 609 705 397 
Water Samples 76 65 93 61 
Forage Samples 1 2 2 0 
Microbiology Samples 9 10 10 19 
Plant Tissue Samples 1 1 2 0 
Well Inspections 2 5 5 5 
Pesticide Applicator Licenses 10 18 15 43 
Water Use Registrants # 55 160 # # 
Home Site Visits 350 378 385 362 
P.A.R. Produce Generated (lbs.) 6,417 28,205 31,205 86,514₪ 
* Reduction in publications is due to the increase amount of clients utilizing the web based 
applications to receive information. We do not currently have a way to monitor those numbers. 
# Water Use Registrants based from drought restrictions. Further registrants are based on future 
drought and drought restrictions. 
₪ Numbers include produce from the Plant A Row Garden in Fayette County as well as produce 


gleaned from other farms and distributed by the Master Gardener program. 
 


(all information derived from GA Counts, Master Gardener Annual Report,  
Data Transfer and Pesticide Reports submitted to the State of Georgia) 





		Cooperative Extension- Contract Renewal Agenda Request File.pdf

		Cooperative Extension- Contract Renewal Backup

		CooperativeExtension - Contract Renewal Backup1.pdf

		CooperativeExtension - Contract Renewal Backup2












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Elections Department Thomas L. Sawyer 


Approval  to transfer $4,502 from the County's Contingency Fund to Elections Department budget to cover the balance of the cost of 


repairs to voting equipment; and approval to purchase two AccuVote-OS Optical Scanners at a cost of $ 1,940, for a total request for 


funds from the Contingency Fund of $6,442.00.


The Fayette County Board of Elections made the decision to cancel the extended warranty with Diebold on all voting equipment during  


FY 2008  which had been approximately $30,000 per year.The Department has saved approximately $105,760 during the current and 


previous three fiscal years by eliminating  the warranty and spending only the needed amount for repairs. A recap of budgeted funds and 


expenditures for the current and three preceding fiscal years is as follows:  


                                                                                    Budgeted Amount                  Expenditures 


                                                            2008                     $10,000                                $     142                                                                        


                                                            2009                         5,000                                    2,585 


                                                            2010                         3,500                                     3,011 


                                                            2011                         4,000                                     8,502 


Fourteen pieces of elections equipment were sent to Elections System & Software, Inc.  The repair invoice totaled $8,502 but only $4,000 


was budgeted for repairs and maintenance the current  fiscal year.  Two of the three optical scanners were not repaired because staff felt 


it more economically feasible to replace them at a cost of $1,940 rather than repair the two old machines at an  estimated repair cost of   


$1,526.  Staff  respectfully requests to be allowed to replace the old scanners rather than repair them.   


Approval of the the Elections Department's request to transfer $ 4,502  from the County's Contingency Fund to the Election Department's 


Budget to fund the balance of the cost for repairs to election equipment; and approval to transfer $1,940 from Contingency to purchase 


two new Optical Scanners at a cost of $ 1,940, for a total request from the Contingency Fund of $ $6,442.00.   


See attached. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011

























		Elections- Voting Equipment Agenda Request File.pdf

		Elections- Voting Equipment Backup

		Elections-PremierElectionSolutionsBackup1.pdf

		Election-OpticalScannerQuoteBackup2








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire and Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough


Presentation of Heartsaver Award by the American Heart Association representative Mike Willingham to Russell Sharpe,  Denise 


Clayburn, Matt Myers, Michael Nations, David Winkles and Jonathan Kempler for saving the life of Mr. Mike Aquino on January 31, 2011.


On January 31, 2011 while working out at World Gym in Peachtree City, Mr. Mike Aquino stepped off an exercise treadmill and went into 


cardiac arrest.  Unknown to many present, Mr. Aquino had 4 Guardian Angels nearby ready to step-in and do what they do on a daily 


basis and that is to assist and render aid to the community and citizens.  Those four people were Russell Sharpe, Firefighter/EMT with 


Fayette County Department of Fire and Emergency, Denise Clayburn, Registered Nurse with Piedmont Fayette Hospital, Matt Myers, 


Police Officer with Peachtree City Police Department, and Michael Nations, Firefighter/EMT with Sandy Springs Fire Department.  After 


Mr. Aquino passed out and was without a pulse, the four began performing CPR with the aid of an Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) 


that was present at the gym.  After a round of CPR and being shocked once by the AED, Mr. Aquino was revived and began speaking 


and answering questions from the rescuers as the Peachtree City Fire Department's medic unit, David Winkles and Jonathan Kempler, 


arrived to transport Mr. Aquino to Piedmont Fayette Emergency Room for further evaluation and care.  Mr. Aquino was later transported 


to Piedmont Atlanta Hospital for extensive cardiac surgery and care.   


Public Safety Allen McCullough will present the award.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, April 28, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fleet Maintenance Bill Lackey / Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc. (MCES) to conduct quarterly 


groundwater monitoring as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division, at a quarterly cost of $3,859; and authorization for 


the Chairman to execute said agreement pending approval of the County Attorney.


On March 12, 2009 the Board of Commissioners awarded a contract to Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc. to prepare a Corrective 


Action Plan (CAP- Part A) as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division (EPD) to address contaminated soil and 


groundwater issues encountered during underground storage tank replacement activities in 2008.  Since this date MCES has prepared 


the CAP Part A and a Site Investigation Report (SIR).  Data collected from the SIR indicated the need for a Corrective Action Plan Part B 


which was prepared and submitted to EPD by MSEC on November 30, 2010 with further recommended actions.  The EPD responded on 


March 28, 2011 and approved recommendations as submitted by MSEC with the addition of quarterly monitoring instead of semi-annual 


monitoring.  If this quarterly monitoring demonstrates that the contamination is stable and declining, a well abandonment and site closure 


will be recommended.


Motion to approve staff's recommendation to enter into an agreement with Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc. (MCES) to conduct 


quarterly groundwater monitoring as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection Division, at a quarterly cost of $3,859; and 


authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement pending approval of the County Attorney.


The cost for monitoring is $3,859 per quarter, which is reimbursable through the G.U.S.T. Fund (Georgia Underground Storage Tank 


Trust Fund)


Yes Thursday, May 13, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 28, 2011











 


1818 Perimeter Road • Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
706-579-1607 Phone • 706-265-4916 Fax • www.millcreekenvironmental.com 


 


 
March 30, 2011 
 
Mr. Bill Lackey 
115 McDonough Road 
Fayetteville, Georgia  30214 
 
Subject: Quarterly Groundwater Monitoring Proposal 
  Fayette County Fleet Maintenance Facility 
  115 McDonough Road 
  Fayetteville, Fayette County, Georgia 
  EPD Facility ID:  09056047*1 
 
Dear Mr. Lackey: 
 
Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc. (MCES) has received notice from the Georgia EPD 
granting approval of the Corrective Action Plan – Part B (CAP-B) that we recently submitted on 
your behalf.  You have been authorized to implement the Monitoring Only Plan (MOP) proposed 
for the subject property.  The scope of work approved by the EPD calls for two years of quarterly 
groundwater sampling and reporting.  
 
MCES is prepared to implement the monitoring plan upon your approval.  A proposal based on 
the approved tasks and expenses listed on the GUST cost review form submitted with the CAP-B 
is included below. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
MCES will perform the following scope of work on a quarterly basis:  
 
• MCES will collect depth-to-water measurements from all monitoring points prior to sample 


collection; 
 
• Groundwater samples will be collected from the seven monitoring wells at the subject 


property and submitted to an approved laboratory to be analyzed for benzene, toluene, 
ethylbenzene, and xylenes (BTEX) and methyl-tertbutyl-ether (MTBE) by USEPA SW 846 
Method 8260B and for polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) by USEPA SW 846 
Method 8270C;  


 
• Quarterly monitoring  reports will be prepared and submitted to the Georgia EPD; and, 







Mr. Bill Lackey 
April 4, 2011 
Page 2 of 3 
 


P:\Fayette\Fleet\Admin\proposal\QMRpro.doc 


 
• An updated GUST cost review form and request for reimbursement will be prepared and 


submitted with each report. 
 
Project Cost 
 
MCES proposes to complete these tasks on a time and materials basis according to the unit costs 
listed on the approved GUST cost review form.  The total approved cost to complete these tasks 
is $3,859 per quarter.  MCES will not exceed the proposed costs without prior approval.  
 
Schedule 
 
MCES is prepared to begin this project upon written authorization to proceed.  Monitoring 
reports will be completed within 14 days of receipt of all data reports. Monitoring reports and 
GUST reimbursement applications will be submitted to the EPD upon receipt of payment from 
Fayette County. 
 
If you approve this scope of work, please sign the attached page and return a copy of this 
proposal to our office.  If you have any questions about this proposal, or if MCES can be of 
assistance in any other capacity, please don’t hesitate to call the undersigned at 706-579-1607. 
 
Sincerely, 
MILL CREEK ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Jake Irwin       Dan Centofanti, P.G. 
Project Manager      Program Manager 
 
 
 
Attachment:  GUST Cost Review Form, Task 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Mr. Bill Lackey 
April 4, 2011 
Page 3 of 3 
 


P:\Fayette\Fleet\Admin\proposal\QMRpro.doc 


 
 


ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSED WORK 
Quarterly Groundwater Monitoring  


Fayette County Fleet Maintenance Facility 
115 McDonough Road 


Fayetteville, Fayette County, Georgia 
EPD Facility ID:  09056047*1 


 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Authorized Agent Signature      Printed Name  Title             Date  
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Company Name    Address     Phone 
 
 
�  Corporation  �  Proprietor  �  Partnership  �  Other_____________________ 
 
Payment Terms 
All work will be conducted on a time and materials  basis.  MCES will not exceed the proposed costs without prior written approval from the 
client.  All accounts are due upon receipt of MCES invoices for work completed.  MCES may charge 12% annual interest for any invoices that 
are not paid within 30 days of mailing.  MCES will proceed to collections if invoices are not paid within 60 days of mailing.  Collections 
proceedings on unpaid accounts may consist of liens on property where work was conducted as well as legal action.  Client agrees to pay 
reasonable attorneys fees, collections costs, and interest on all past due accounts and collections actions.  
 





		Fleet Maintenance- Quarterly Monitoring Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fleet Maintenance- Quarterly Monitoring Agreement Backup

		Fleet Maintenance- Quarterly Monitoring Backup1.pdf

		Fleet Maintenance- Quarterly Monitoring Agreement Backup 2





